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RE Official information request CDHB 9867 

 

We refer to your email dated 30 May 2018 requesting the following information under section 12 of the Official 

Information Act (the ‘Act’) from Canterbury DHB.  
 

1. The number of assaults of hospital staff by patients reported to the DHB over the last five years. If this could 

please be broken down into number of cases each year for 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, and 2017.  

2. I would also like obtain the number of these assaults that were then reported to the police. I would also like 

to know the types of assaults these were. These do not need to be broken down into how many of each but 

just a list of the types of assault. 

 

The wellbeing and safety of our patients and staff is extremely important to us and staff work extremely hard to 

maintain a safe environment across our services. 

 

Canterbury DHB implemented a centralised electronic incident reporting system in January 2015.  As at 7th June 

2018, there were 3278 incidents recorded with the mechanism of harm ‘physical assault’ from January 2015 until 

June 2018 [865 in 2015, 1004 in 2016, 1021 in 2017 and 388 up to 6th June 2018]. 

 

For the event type, ‘verbal abuse’, 1182 [232 in 2015, 311 in 2016, 392 in 2017 and 247 up to 6th June 2018] 

incidents were recorded over the same period. The Canterbury DHB records the division and area for an incident, 

not the hospital or department. 

 

To provide the information requested prior to 2015 would require substantial collation and research; we are 

therefore declining to provide information for 2013 and 2014 under section 18(f) of the official Information Act.  If 

you disagree with our decision to withhold information you may, under section 28(3) of the Act, seek an 

investigation and review of our decision from the Ombudsman. 

 

Of the 3278 incidents recorded, 656 [112 in 2015, 190 in 2016, 243 in 2017 and 111 up to 6th June 2018] were 

accepted as ACC claims with a mechanism of harm ‘being hit, struck or bitten by person’. 
 

194 of the accepted claims were from Specialist Mental Health Service. (SMHS)  The physical severity of an incident 

is estimated by the amount of lost time accrued. For Canterbury DHB, 141 of these injuries resulted in no lost time 

[i.e. no time off work], 97 injuries resulted in 20 lost days or less and 39 injuries resulted in greater than 20 lost days. 
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Note: over the last five financial years and despite the unprecedented level of demand across the service, 

combined injury frequency [ratio of all accepted medical treatment claims per million hours work] for Specialist 

Mental Health Service (SMHS) has risen slightly, which while concerning is a testament to the skill of our staff  

[fig. 1]. 

 

Figure 1 – Combined Injury Frequency SMHS 

 

Over the same period, lost time injury frequency [number of lost time injuries per million hours worked] for SMHS 

has also increased [fig 2.].  This increase is due to a spike in lost time injuries in August 2016 and in June 2017. 

SMHS staff,  management and clinical leaders, unions, and supported by Canterbury DHB Health and Safety, work 

together to reduce the frequency and severity of incidents through actively addressing issues,  strengthening 

clinical leadership, reviewing models of care, stabilising staff numbers and reducing the use of agency staff, making 

environmental changes within buildings, where we can, and strengthening induction and orientation procedures.  

 

Figure 2 – Lost Time Injury Frequency SMHS 

 

Of the 3278 incidents reported, 2988 incidents were reported by SMHS [fig. 3] (overleaf). Note: 2250 of the 

reported incidents in SMHS were reported as a physical injury. In comparison, across all Canterbury DHB divisions 

1028 of the reported incidents were reported as a physical injury. This may indicate we have a positive and 

proactive reporting culture in SMHS that supports the promotion of a safe working environment. 

 



We do not record incidents by severity as this would be too subjective because what one person considers minor 

might have a more serious impact on another, either physically or psychologically.   

Since the adoption of the Safety First reporting system, we have developed a strong reporting culture for all types 

of adverse incidents.  Staff are entitled to make a complaint with the Police but the incident reporting system does 

not hold data concerning the number of times the Police were called to assist or intervene in any of the incidents.  

To retrieve this would require use of substantial public resources to undertake research and collation of data 

against each individual patient file. We are therefore declining this question under section 18(f) of the Official 

Information Act.    Our ‘Complaint to Police (Staff Complaint) Policy’ (Appendix 1 attached) outlines the process for 

a staff member who wishes to lay a complaint with Police, following an incident for example, an assault. 

 

Figure 3 – Specific Events Reported ‘physical assault’ CDHB Division [January 2015 – June 2018] 

 

SMHS - Assessment, Treatment and Rehabilitation [AT&R], Te Awakura and PSAID Inpatient and are the SMHS 

units with the highest incident reporting rates [fig. 4]: 

 AT&R [8 beds] – 631 incidents reported, 540 were reported as a physical injury. 

 Te Awakura [64 beds] - 783 incidents reported, 509 were reported as a physical injury. 

 PSAID Inpatient [14 beds] – 389 incidents reported, 369 were reported as a physical injury. 

 

Figure 4 – Specific Events Reported ‘physical assault’ SMHS Unit 

 
 



Figure 5 Christchurch Campus – Emergency Department reported 368 incidents, 180 did not result in injury. 

 

Figure 6 OPH&R – Ward BG reported 67 incidents, 24 did not result in injury. 

 

 



 

We take the health, safety and wellbeing of our workforce very seriously, in addition to the information provided 

in this response we have a range of wellbeing initiatives underway across the Canterbury DHB which we would be 

happy to share with you if you are interested. 

 

 

Please find attached as Appendices: 

Appendix 1 – Complaint to Police (Staff complaint) 

Appendix 2 – Wellbeing, Health and Safety Policy 

Appendix 3 – Incident Management 

 

Please note that this response, or an edited version of this response, may be published on the Canterbury DHB 

website five working days after your receipt of this response. 

 

I trust that this satisfies your interest in this matter. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 
Carolyn Gullery 

Executive Director 

Planning, Funding & Decision Support 
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